
 
CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 

COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS MINUTES 
 April 16, 2015 

 
555 S. 10TH STREET, Suite 303 

  
The April 16, 2015, meeting of the Commission on Human Rights was called to order at 4:04 p.m. 
by Bennie Shobe, Chair. 
 
ROLL CALL:     
The roll call was called and documented as follows:  
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Commissioners: Bennie Shobe (Chair), Mary Reece (Vice-Chair), Liz Kennedy-King, Susan 
Oldfield, Takako Olson, and Melanie Ways. Quorum present.   
Jon Rehm joined the meeting at 4:10 p.m.  
 
MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Amanda Baron and Micheal Q. Thompson. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Kimberley Taylor-Riley, Margie Nichols, Abigail Littrell, Loren Roberts, and Peg Dillon. 
 
APPROVAL OF MARCH 26, 2015, MINUTES: 
A motion was made by Ways and seconded by Kennedy-King to approve the minutes of the March 
26, 2015, meeting as submitted.   
 
Hearing no discussion, Shobe asked for the roll call. Voting Aaye@ was: Shobe, Reece, Olson, 
Kennedy-King, and Ways. Abstaining was Oldfield. Motion carried.  
 
APPROVAL OF APRIL 16, 2015, AGENDA: 
A motion was made by Reece and seconded Olson to approve the April 26, 2015, agenda.  
 
Hearing no discussion, Shobe asked for the roll call.  Voting Aaye@ was: Shobe, Reece, Oldfield, 
Olson, Kennedy-King, and Ways. Motion carried. 
 
 
 



Commission on Human Rights 
April 16, 2015 
Page 2 

 
CASE DISPOSITIONS: 
 
LCHR #14-1009-024-E-R 
A motion was made by Oldfield and seconded by Olson to recommend a finding of No Reasonable 
Cause on all issues. 
 
Questions were raised regarding an offer to rehire the Complainant.  Nichols said that one of the 
supervisors advised the Complainant that she could reapply for rehire.  However, Complainant’s 
direct supervisor reported that Complainant was not reliable and would not be rehired.  
 
Kennedy-King asked about the Complainant’s calls to her supervisor reporting that she would not be 
coming to work. Nichols explained that the supervisor was out of town and not checking her 
messages on her desk phone, so she didn’t receive the messages the days they were left.  The 
manager who terminated the Complainant was not aware of the unread voicemails.  Nichols asked 
the Respondent if knowing about the message would have made a difference in the decision to 
terminate and Respondent said it probably would not.  The Complainant had missed too many 
training days and it would be too difficult to make up those days.   
 
Kennedy-King asked why the Respondent did not consider letting the Complainant attend another 
training session.  Nichols replied that the Respondent did not consider the Complainant to be reliable 
and believed she would not be successful at completing the training at a later date.    
 
Shobe asked about when the Respondent was made aware of, Complainant’s pregnancy, and if her 
sex was genuinely the basis for discrimination.  Nichols replied that the Complainant informed the 
Respondent she was pregnant on her second day of work; however, regardless of her reason for 
missing work, the Respondent said that missing too many days of training was the reason she was 
terminated.    
 
Hearing no further discussion, Shobe asked for the roll call. Voting Aaye@ was: Shobe, Reece, 
Oldfield, Olson, Kennedy-King, Rehm, and Ways. Motion carried. 
 
LCHR #14-1219-029-H 
A motion was made by Ways and seconded by Oldfield to recommend a finding of No Reasonable 
Cause on all issues. 
 
Ways inquired as to how the neighbors landscaping impaired the Complainant’s access to the shared 
yard.  Taylor-Riley said because the Complainant’s neighbor planted a new garden the Complainant 
believed she was purposefully impeding access to the back yard.   
 



Commission on Human Rights 
April 16, 2015 
Page 3 

Shobe asked if the Complainant believed the landlord had a responsibility to abate the obstruction or 
intervene between Complainant and her neighbor in the duplex.  Taylor-Riley discussed evidence she 
discovered that the landlord did talk with the neighbor and made changes to the back patio in 
response to the Complainant’s complaints. 
 
There was discussion about the route to the backyard and if it was intended to be a dedicated 
pathway.  Taylor-Riley provided pictures of the property, and described the layout of the duplex.  
She explained that the residents share a back door exit that provides access to the rear patio and side 
yard.  
 
There was discussion about the activities of the neighbor and how those activities were directed 
toward the Complainant because of Complainant’s disability.   Taylor-Riley explained that 
Complainant’s disabilities are largely invisible and not obvious.  The neighbor was aware of the 
Complainant’s disability because of her car tag and because the landlord had shared that the 
Complainant alleged she was disabled.   
 
Reece questioned whether Complainant asked for a reasonable accommodation. Taylor-Riley said 
Complainant had talked to different entities about how to request an accommodation but it did not 
appear that the reasonable accommodation request was actually sent before the case was referred to 
the Commission. 
 
Hearing no further discussion, Shobe asked for the roll call. Voting Aaye@ was: Shobe, Reece, 
Oldfield, Olson, Kennedy-King, Rehm, and Ways. Motion carried. 
 
LCHR #14-1222-026-E-R 
A motion was made by Reece and seconded by Ways to recommend a finding of No Reasonable 
Cause on all issues. 
 
Nichols let the Commissioners know that the Respondent provided new evidence after the written 
investigatory report was sent to the Commissioners. The new evidence was a copy of a note that said: 
“The Complainant wanted to sell me things himself and just ‘make them disappear’ if you have any 
questions call me.” This individual’s name and phone number was included on the note.  There was 
discussion about this note and its authenticity.  
 
Shobe asked about Complainant’s unequal wage allegation. Nichols said that pay differential 
between employees was justified because the some employees were hired specifically as drivers and 
pay was also based on skill and experience. 
 
Rehm asked if Nichols had any reason to believe that the Respondent was discriminatory in his 
hiring practices.  Nichols replied that it is difficult to find comparators in smaller companies and she 
did not observe or review anything that indicated discriminatory hiring practices. 



Commission on Human Rights 
April 16, 2015 
Page 4 

 
Hearing no further discussion, Shobe asked for the roll call. Voting Aaye@ was: Shobe, Reece, 
Oldfield, Olson, Kennedy-King, Rehm, and Ways. Motion carried. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE CLOSURES: 
 
LCHR #14-0717-013-E-R 
A motion was made by Rehm and seconded by Kennedy-King to recommend an approval of 
administrative closure with a Notice of Right to Sue. 
 
Kennedy-King asked for an update on the conciliation attempt.  Nichols replied that there was no 
conciliation because the Complainant requested a Notice of Right to Sue.  
 
Hearing no further discussion, Shobe asked for the roll call. Voting Aaye@ was: Shobe, Reece, 
Oldfield, Olson, Kennedy-King, Rehm, and Ways. Motion carried. 
 
OLD BUSINESS:    
 
Civil Rights Conference 
Roberts updated Commissioners on the upcoming Civil Rights Conference scheduled for April 29.  
One hundred seventy three people had registered and 8 Commissioners confirmed they would attend. 
Two awards will be presented during the luncheon part of the program: the Gerald Henderson 
Human Rights Award to Wendy Francis and a Service Recognition Award to Angela Lemke. She 
added there would be 20 different agencies with resource tables to promote their services to the 
attendees.   
 
Outreach Activities 
Roberts updated the Commissioners on outreach activities. The Commission will participate in three 
upcoming community events: Cinco de Mayo on April 25, the Health and Human Services Fair at the 
Indian Center on May 2, and Juneteenth on June 20th.   
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Business Cards for Commissioners 
Roberts distributed LCHR business cards to each Commissioner so they could use them to promote 
LCHR in the community.  
 
Realtors and HUD 
Nichols discussed presenting to the Realtors and providing the soon to be finished 2014 LCHR 
Annual Report.   
 



Commission on Human Rights 
April 16, 2015 
Page 5 

Nichols also discussed the change to the contract with HUD.  HUD is increasing the pay for each 
case and increasing the training funds.     
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: No public comment. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:08 p.m. 
 

Next Meeting: 
Thursday, May 28, 2015, at 4:00 p.m.  

555 S. 10th Street, 1st floor, City Council Chambers. 
 


